# 506825877 08/19/2021 PATENT ASSIGNMENT COVER SHEET

Electronic Version v1.1 Stylesheet Version v1.2 EPAS ID: PAT6872697

SUBMISSION TYPE: NATURE OF CONVEYANCE:		NEW ASSIGNMENT SECURITY INTEREST		
			Name	Execution Date
BRN PHOENIX, INC.				01/22/2008
				·
RECEIVING PARTY D	ΑΤΑ			
Name:	DTV S	DTV SATELLITE BROADBAND, LLC		
Street Address:	2230 E	AST	IMPERIAL HIGHWAY	
City:	EL SE	EL SEGUNDO		
State/Country:	CALIF	CALIFORNIA		
Postal Code:	90245			
PROPERTY NUMBER	S Total: 4			
Property Type	9		Number	
Application Number:		1227	6261	
Application Number:		1341	1507	
Application Number: 134		1341	1510	
Application Number:		14804094		
CORRESPONDENCE	DATA	(10.1)		
Fax Number:	ha cont t	• •	815-6555 <b>e-mail address first; if that is unsuc</b>	ooooful it will be cont
			hat is unsuccessful, it will be sent v	
		4048	156500	
Email:			ew@kilpatricktownsend.com	
Correspondent Name	):		DIRECTV GROUP, INC.	
Address Line 1:				
Address Line 4:		EL S	EGUNDO, CALIFORNIA 90245	
ATTORNEY DOCKET NUMBER:			DTV208070	
NAME OF SUBMITTER:			LESLEY L. ANDREW	
			/Lesley L. Andrew/	
SIGNATURE:			08/19/2021	
SIGNATURE: DATE SIGNED:			00/19/2021	
			08/19/2021	
DATE SIGNED: Total Attachments: 17 source=Security_Agree	_	_	penix_IncDVR_Satellite_Broadban	
DATE SIGNED: Fotal Attachments: 17	ment_BRN	_ I_Pho	enix_IncDVR_Satellite_Broadbance enix_IncDVR_Satellite_Broadbance	d_LLC#page2.tif

source=Security_Agreement_BRN_Phoenix_IncDVR_Satellite_Broadband_LLC#page4.tif
source=Security_Agreement_BRN_Phoenix_IncDVR_Satellite_Broadband_LLC#page5.tif
source=Security_Agreement_BRN_Phoenix_IncDVR_Satellite_Broadband_LLC#page6.tif
source=Security_Agreement_BRN_Phoenix_IncDVR_Satellite_Broadband_LLC#page7.tif
source=Security_Agreement_BRN_Phoenix_IncDVR_Satellite_Broadband_LLC#page8.tif
source=Security_Agreement_BRN_Phoenix_IncDVR_Satellite_Broadband_LLC#page9.tif
source=Security_Agreement_BRN_Phoenix_IncDVR_Satellite_Broadband_LLC#page10.tif
source=Security_Agreement_BRN_Phoenix_IncDVR_Satellite_Broadband_LLC#page11.tif
source=Security_Agreement_BRN_Phoenix_IncDVR_Satellite_Broadband_LLC#page12.tif
source=Security_Agreement_BRN_Phoenix_IncDVR_Satellite_Broadband_LLC#page13.tif
source=Security_Agreement_BRN_Phoenix_IncDVR_Satellite_Broadband_LLC#page14.tif
source=Security_Agreement_BRN_Phoenix_IncDVR_Satellite_Broadband_LLC#page15.tif
source=Security_Agreement_BRN_Phoenix_IncDVR_Satellite_Broadband_LLC#page16.tif
source=Security_Agreement_BRN_Phoenix_IncDVR_Satellite_Broadband_LLC#page17.tif

# SECURITY AGREEMENT

made by

# BRN PHOENIX, INC.

in favor of

# DTV SATELLITE BROADBAND, LLC,

as Collateral Agent

Dated as of January 22, 2008

NY2A1832231405439RB051.DOCV33356.0020

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 1.	DEFINED TERMS	1
1.1	Definitions	1
1.2	Other Definitional Provisions	4
SECTION 2.	GRANT OF SECURITY INTEREST	4
SECTION 3.	REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES	5
3.1	Jurisdiction of Organization; Chief Executive Office	5
SECTION 4.	REMEDIAL PROVISIONS	5
4.1	Code and Other Remedies	5
4.2	Deficiency	6
SECTION 5.	THE COLLATERAL AGENT	6
5.1	Collateral Agent's Appointment as Attorney-in-Fact, etc	6
5.2	Duty of Collateral Agent	6
5.3	Execution of Financing Statements	7
5.4	Authority of Collateral Agent	7
SECTION 6.	MISCELLANEOUS	7
6.1	Amendments in Writing	7
6.2	Notices	7
6.3	No Waiver by Course of Conduct; Cumulative Remedies	7
6.4	Expenses; Indemnification	. 8
6.5	Successors and Assigns	.9
6.6	Set-Off	.9
6.7	Counterparts	.9
6.8	Severability	.9
6.9	Section Headings	.9
6.10	Integration	10
6.11	GOVERNING LAW	10
6.12	Submission To Jurisdiction; Waivers	10
6.13	Acknowledgements	10
6.14	WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL	11

Page

NY2:\1832231\05\139RB051.DOC\53356.0020

1

ų,

PATENT REEL: 057227 FRAME: 0643

# SECURITY AGREEMENT

# made by

# BRN PHOENIX, INC.

in favor of

# DTV SATELLITE BROADBAND, LLC,

as Collateral Agent

Dated as of January 22, 2008

NY2:\1832231\05\139RB051.DOC\53356.0020

1. S. 1. S

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

$\mathbf{p}_i$	32	e
deleterine a		

SECTION 1.	DEFINED TERMS
1.1	Definitions1
1.2	Other Definitional Provisions
SECTION 2.	GRANT OF SECURITY INTEREST
SECTION 3.	REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
3.1	Jurisdiction of Organization; Chief Executive Office
SECTION 4.	REMEDIAL PROVISIONS
4.1	Code and Other Remedies
4.2	Deficiency
SECTION 5.	THE COLLATERAL AGENT
5.1	Collateral Agent's Appointment as Attorney-in-Fact, etc
5.2	Duty of Collateral Agent
5.3	Execution of Financing Statements
5.4	Authority of Collateral Agent
SECTION 6.	MISCELLANEOUS
6.1	Amendments in Writing7
6.2	Notices
6.3	No Waiver by Course of Conduct; Cumulative Remedies
6.4	Expenses; Indemnification
6.5	Successors and Assigns
6.6	Set-Off
6.7	Counterparts
6.8	Severability
6.9	Section Headings
6.10	Integration
6.11	GOVERNING LAW
6.12	Submission To Jurisdiction; Waivers
6.13	Acknowledgements
6.14	WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL

SECURITY AGREEMENT, dated as of January 22, 2008, made by BRN PHOENIX, INC. (the "Grantor") in favor of DTV SATELLITE BROADBAND, LLC, as Collateral Agent (in such capacity, the "Collateral Agent") for the holders (the "Holders") of the Promissory Note.

# WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, it is a condition precedent to the obligation of the Holders to make their respective advances to the Grantor under the Promissory Note that the Grantor shall have executed and delivered this Agreement to the Collateral Agent;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and to induce the Holders to make their respective advances to the Grantor under the Promissory Note, the Grantor hereby agrees with the Collateral Agent, for the benefit of the Secured Parties, as follows:

### SECTION 1. DEFINED TERMS

1.1 <u>Definitions</u>. (a) Unless otherwise defined herein, terms defined in the Promissory Note and used herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Promissory Note and the following terms are used herein as defined in the New York UCC: Accounts, Certificated Security, Chattel Paper, Commercial Tort Claims, Documents, Equipment, Farm Products, General Intangibles, Goods, Instruments, Inventory, Letter-of-Credit Rights and Supporting Secured Obligations.

(b) The following terms shall have the following meanings:

"<u>Agreement</u>": this Security Agreement, as the same may be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time.

"<u>Capital Stock</u>": any and all shares, interests, participations or other equivalents (however designated) of capital stock of a corporation, any and all equivalent ownership interests in a Person (other than a corporation) and any and all warrants, rights or options to purchase any of the foregoing.

"Collateral": as defined in Section 2.

"<u>Copyrights</u>": (i) all copyrights arising under the laws of the United States, any other country or any political subdivision thereof, whether registered or unregistered and whether published or unpublished, all registrations and recordings thereof, and all applications in connection therewith, including, without limitation, all registrations, recordings and applications in the United States Copyright Office, and (ii) the right to obtain all renewals thereof.

"<u>Copyright Licenses</u>": any written agreement naming the Grantor as licensor or licensee, granting any right under any Copyright, including, without limitation, the grant of rights to manufacture, distribute, exploit and sell materials derived from any Copyright.

"<u>Deposit Account</u>": as defined in the Uniform Commercial Code of any applicable jurisdiction and, in any event, including, without limitation, any demand, time, savings, passbook or like account maintained with a depositary institution.

"Foreign Subsidiary": any Subsidiary organized under the laws of any jurisdiction outside the United States of America.

"Foreign Subsidiary Voting Stock": the voting Capital Stock of any Foreign Subsidiary.

"Intellectual Property": the collective reference to all rights, priorities and privileges relating to intellectual property, whether arising under United States, multinational or foreign laws or otherwise, including, without limitation, the Copyrights, the Copyright Licenses, the Patents, the Patent Licenses, the Trademarks and the Trademark Licenses, and all rights to sue at law or in equity for any infringement or other impairment thereof, including the right to receive all proceeds and damages therefrom.

"Investment Property": the collective reference to (i) all "investment property" as such term is defined in Section 9-102(a)(49) of the New York UCC (other than any Foreign Subsidiary Voting Stock excluded from the definition of "Pledged Stock" in this Section 1.1) and (ii) whether or not constituting "investment property" as so defined, all Pledged Notes and all Pledged Stock.

"<u>New York UCC</u>": the Uniform Commercial Code as from time to time in effect in the State of New York.

"Note Documents": the Promissory Note and this Agreement.

"<u>Patents</u>": (i) all letters patent of the United States, any other country or any political subdivision thereof, all reissues and extensions thereof and all goodwill associated therewith, (ii) all applications for letters patent of the United States or any other country and all divisions, continuations and continuations-in-part thereof and (iii) all rights to obtain any reissues or extensions of the foregoing.

"<u>Patent License</u>": all agreements, whether written or oral, providing for the grant by or to the Grantor of any right to manufacture, use or sell any invention covered in whole or in part by a Patent.

"Person": an individual, partnership, corporation, limited liability company, business trust, joint stock company, trust, unincorporated association, joint venture, governmental authority or other entity of whatever nature.

"Pledged Notes": all promissory notes issued to or held by the Grantor.

"<u>Pledged Stock</u>": Any shares, stock certificates, options or rights of any nature whatsoever in respect of the Capital Stock of any Person that may be issued or granted to, or held by, the Grantor while this Agreement is in effect; <u>provided</u> that in no event shall

# PATENT REEL: 057227 FRAME: 0647

more than 65% of the total outstanding Foreign Subsidiary Voting Stock of any Foreign Subsidiary be required to be pledged hereunder.

"<u>Proceeds</u>": all "proceeds" as such term is defined in Section 9-102(a)(64) of the Uniform Commercial Code in effect in the State of New York on the date hereof and, in any event, including, without limitation, all dividends or other income from the Investment Property, collections thereon or distributions or payments with respect thereto.

"<u>Promissory Note</u>": the promissory note, dated January 22, 2008, issued by the Grantor to the Holders.

"Secured Obligations": the collective reference to the unpaid principal of and interest on the Promissory Note and all other obligations and liabilities of the Grantor (including, without limitation, interest accruing at the then applicable rate provided in the Promissory Note after the maturity thereof and interest accruing at the then applicable rate provided in the Promissory Note after the filing of any petition in bankruptcy, or the commencement of any insolvency, reorganization or like proceeding, relating to the Grantor, whether or not a claim for post-filing or post-petition interest is allowed in such proceeding) to the Collateral Agent or any Holder, whether direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, due or to become due, or now existing or hereafter incurred, which may arise under, out of, or in connection with, the Promissory Note, this Agreement or any other document made, delivered or given in connection therewith, in each case whether on account of principal, interest, reimbursement obligations, fees, indemnities, costs, expenses or otherwise (including, without limitation, all fees and disbursements of counsel to the Collateral Agent or to the Holders that are required to be paid by the Grantor pursuant to the terms of any of the foregoing agreements).

"<u>Secured Parties</u>": the collective reference to the Collateral Agent and the Holders.

"Subsidiary": as to any Person, a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity of which shares of stock or other ownership interests having ordinary voting power (other than stock or such other ownership interests having such power only by reason of the happening of a contingency) to elect a majority of the board of directors or other managers of such corporation, partnership or other entity are at the time owned, or the management of which is otherwise controlled, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, or both, by such Person.

"<u>Trademarks</u>": (i) all trademarks, trade names, corporate names, company names, business names, fictitious business names, trade styles, service marks, logos and other source or business identifiers, and all goodwill associated therewith, now existing or hereafter adopted or acquired, all registrations and recordings thereof, and all applications in connection therewith, whether in the United States Patent and Trademark Office or in any similar office or agency of the United States, any State thereof or any other country or any political subdivision thereof, or otherwise, and all common-law rights related thereto and (ii) the right to obtain all renewals thereof.

### PATENT REEL: 057227 FRAME: 0648

"Trademark License": any agreement, whether written or oral, providing for the grant by or to the Grantor of any right to use any Trademark.

1.2 <u>Other Definitional Provisions</u>. (a) The words "hereof," "herein", "hereto" and "hereunder" and words of similar import when used in this Agreement shall refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision of this Agreement, and Section and Schedule references are to this Agreement unless otherwise specified.

(b) The meanings given to terms defined herein shall be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms of such terms.

#### SECTION 2. GRANT OF SECURITY INTEREST

\_ The Grantor hereby assigns and transfers to the Collateral Agent, and hereby grants to the Collateral Agent, for the ratable benefit of the Secured Parties, a security interest in, all of the following property now owned or at any time hereafter acquired by the Grantor or in which the Grantor now has or at any time in the future may acquire any right, title or interest (collectively, the "<u>Collateral</u>"), as collateral security for the prompt and complete payment and performance when due (whether at the stated maturity, by acceleration or otherwise) of the Grantor's Secured Obligations:

- (a) all Accounts;
- (b) all Chattel Paper;
- (c) all Deposit Accounts;
- (d) all Documents;
- (e) all Equipment;
- (f) all General Intangibles;
- (g) all Instruments;
- (h) all Intellectual Property;
- (i) all Inventory;
- (j) all Investment Property;
- (k) all Letter-of-Credit Rights;
- (I) all Commercial Tort Claims;
- (m) all Goods and other property not otherwise described above;
- (n) all books and records pertaining to the Collateral; and

### PATENT REEL: 057227 FRAME: 0649

(o) to the extent not otherwise included, all Proceeds and products of any and all of the foregoing, all Supporting Obligations in respect of any of the foregoing and all collateral security and guarantees given by any Person with respect to any of the foregoing.

#### SECTION 3. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

To induce the Holders to make their respective advances to the Grantor under the Promissory Note, the Grantor hereby represents and warrants to the Collateral Agent and each Holder that, on the date hereof, the Grantor's jurisdiction of organization is Delaware and the location of the Grantor's chief executive office or sole place of business or principal residence, as the case may be, is BRN Phoenix, Inc., 2500 Augustine Drive, Suite 200, Santa Clara, CA 95054.

#### SECTION 4. REMEDIAL PROVISIONS

Code and Other Remedies. If an Event of Default shall occur and be continuing, 4.1 the Collateral Agent, on behalf of the Secured Parties, may exercise, in addition to all other rights and remedies granted to them in this Agreement and in any other instrument or agreement securing, evidencing or relating to the Secured Obligations, all rights and remedies of a secured party under the New York UCC or any other applicable law. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Collateral Agent, without demand of performance or other demand, presentment, protest, advertisement or notice of any kind (except any notice required by law referred to below) to or upon the Grantor or any other Person (all and each of which demands, defenses, advertisements and notices are hereby waived), may in such circumstances forthwith collect, receive, appropriate and realize upon the Collateral, or any part thereof, and/or may forthwith sell, lease, assign, give option or options to purchase, or otherwise dispose of and deliver the Collateral or any part thereof (or contract to do any of the foregoing), in one or more parcels at public or private sale or sales, at any exchange, broker's board or office of the Collateral Agent or any Secured Party or elsewhere upon such terms and conditions as it may deem advisable and at such prices as it may deem best, for cash or on credit or for future delivery without assumption of any credit risk. The Collateral Agent or any Secured Party shall have the right upon any such public sale or sales, and, to the extent permitted by law, upon any such private sale or sales, to purchase the whole or any part of the Collateral so sold, free of any right or equity of redemption in the Grantor, which right or equity is hereby waived and released. The Grantor further agrees, at the Collateral Agent's request, to assemble the Collateral and make it available to the Collateral Agent at places which the Collateral Agent shall reasonably select, whether at the Grantor's premises or elsewhere. The Collateral Agent shall apply the net proceeds of any action taken by it pursuant to this Section 4.1 with respect to the Grantor's Collateral, after deducting all reasonable costs and expenses of every kind incurred in connection therewith or incidental to the care or safekeeping of any of the Collateral of the Grantor or in any way relating to the Collateral of the Grantor or the rights of the Collateral Agent and the Secured Parties hereunder with respect thereto, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees and disbursements, to the payment in whole or in part of the Secured Obligations of the Grantor, and only after such application and after the payment by the Collateral Agent of any other amount required by any provision of law, including, without limitation, Section 9-615(a)(3) of the New York UCC, need the Collateral Agent account for the surplus, if any, to the Grantor. To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Grantor waives all claims, damages and demands it may acquire against the Collateral Agent or any Secured Party arising out of the exercise by

5

### PATENT REEL: 057227 FRAME: 0650

them of any rights hereunder. If any notice of a proposed sale or other disposition of Collateral shall be required by law, such notice shall be deemed reasonable and proper if given at least 10 days before such sale or other disposition.

4.2 <u>Deficiency</u>. The Grantor shall remain liable for any deficiency if the proceeds of any sale or other disposition of the Collateral are insufficient to pay its Secured Obligations and the fees and disbursements of any attorneys employed by the Collateral Agent or any Secured Party to collect such deficiency.

#### SECTION 5. THE COLLATERAL AGENT

5.1 <u>Collateral Agent's Appointment as Attorney-in-Fact, etc.</u> (a) The Grantor hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints the Collateral Agent and any officer or agent thereof, with full power of-substitution, as its true and lawful attorney-in-fact with full irrevocable power and authority in the place and stead of the Grantor and in the name of the Grantor or in its own name, for the purpose of carrying out the terms of this Agreement, to take any and all appropriate action and to execute any and all documents and instruments which may be necessary or desirable to accomplish the purposes of this Agreement.

(b) If the Grantor fails to perform or comply with any of its agreements contained herein, the Collateral Agent, at its option, but without any obligation so to do, may perform or comply, or otherwise cause performance or compliance, with such agreement.

(c) The expenses of the Collateral Agent incurred in connection with actions undertaken as provided in this Section 5.1 shall be payable by the Grantor to the Collateral Agent on demand.

(d) The Grantor hereby ratifies all that said attorneys shall lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof. All powers, authorizations and agencies contained in this Agreement are coupled with an interest and are irrevocable until this Agreement is terminated and the security interests created hereby are released.

Duty of Collateral Agent. The Collateral Agent's sole duty with respect to the 5.2custody, safekeeping and physical preservation of the Collateral in its possession, under Section 9-207 of the New York UCC or otherwise, shall be to deal with it in the same manner as the Collateral Agent deals with similar property for its own account. Neither the Collateral Agent, any Secured Party nor any of their respective officers, directors, employees or agents shall be liable for failure to demand, collect or realize upon any of the Collateral or for any delay in doing so or shall be under any obligation to sell or otherwise dispose of any Collateral upon the request of the Grantor or any other Person or to take any other action whatsoever with regard to the Collateral or any part thereof. The powers conferred on the Collateral Agent and the Secured Parties hereunder are solely to protect the Collateral Agent's and the Secured Parties' interests in the Collateral and shall not impose any duty upon the Collateral Agent or any Secured Party to exercise any such powers. The Collateral Agent and the Secured Parties shall be accountable only for amounts that they actually receive as a result of the exercise of such powers, and neither they nor any of their officers, directors, employees or agents shall be responsible to the Grantor for any act or failure to act hereunder, except for their own gross negligence or willful misconduct.

### PATENT REEL: 057227 FRAME: 0651

5.3 Execution of Financing Statements. Pursuant to any applicable law, the Grantor authorizes the Collateral Agent to file or record financing statements and other filing or recording documents or instruments with respect to the Collateral without the signature of the Grantor in such form and in such offices as the Collateral Agent determines appropriate to perfect the security interests of the Collateral Agent under this Agreement. The Grantor authorizes the Collateral Agent to use the collateral description "all personal property" or "all assets" in any such financing statements. The Grantor hereby ratifies and authorizes the filing by the Collateral Agent of any financing statement with respect to the Collateral made prior to the date hereof.

5.4 <u>Authority of Collateral Agent</u>. The Grantor acknowledges that the rights and responsibilities of the Collateral Agent under this Agreement with respect to any action taken by the Collateral Agent or the exercise or non-exercise by the Collateral Agent of any option, voting right, request, judgment or other right or remedy provided for herein or resulting or arising out of this Agreement shall, as between the Collateral Agent and the Secured Parties, be governed by such agreements with respect thereto as may exist from time to time among them, but, as between the Collateral Agent and the Grantor, the Collateral Agent shall be conclusively presumed to be acting as agent for the Secured Parties with full and valid authority so to act or refrain from acting, and the Grantor shall not be under any obligation, or entitlement, to make any inquiry respecting such authority.

#### SECTION 6. MISCELLANEOUS

6.1 <u>Amendments in Writing</u>. None of the terms or provisions of this Agreement may be waived, amended, supplemented or otherwise modified except by a written instrument executed by the Grantor and the Collateral Agent.

6.2 <u>Notices</u>. All notices, requests and demands to or upon the respective parties hereto to be effective shall be in writing (including by electronic mail or facsimile), and, unless otherwise expressly provided herein, shall be deemed to have been duly given or made when delivered, or three Business Days after being deposited in the mail, postage prepaid, or, in the case of electronic mail or facsimile notice, when sent, addressed (a) to the Collateral Agent or the Grantor at its notice address set forth on <u>Schedule 1</u> or (b) in the case of any party, to such other address as such party may hereafter notify to the other parties hereto.

6.3 <u>No Waiver by Course of Conduct; Cumulative Remedies</u>. Neither the Collateral Agent nor any Secured Party shall by any act (except by a written instrument pursuant to Section 6.1), delay, indulgence, omission or otherwise be deemed to have waived any right or remedy hereunder or to have acquiesced in any Event of Default. No failure to exercise, nor any delay in exercising, on the part of the Collateral Agent or any Secured Party, any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof. No single or partial exercise of any right, power or privilege hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege. A waiver by the Collateral Agent or any Secured Party of any right or remedy hereunder on any one occasion shall not be construed as a bar to any right or remedy which the Collateral Agent or such Secured Party would otherwise have on any future occasion. The rights and remedies herein provided are cumulative, may be exercised singly or concurrently and are not exclusive of any other rights or remedies provided by law.

NY2:\1832231\05\139RB051.DOC\53356.0020

### PATENT REEL: 057227 FRAME: 0652

Expenses; Indemnification. (a) The Grantor agrees (i) to pay or reimburse the 6.4 Collateral Agent and the Holders for all their costs and expenses incurred in connection with the preparation and execution of, and any amendment, supplement or modification to, this Agreement and the other Note Documents and any other documents prepared in connection herewith or therewith, and the consummation and administration of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, including, without limitation, the fees and disbursements and other charges of counsel to the Collateral Agent and the Holders, which in no event shall exceed \$75,000, (ii) to pay or reimburse each Holder and the Collateral Agent for all their costs and expenses incurred in connection with the enforcement or preservation of any rights under this Agreement, the other Note Documents and any other documents prepared in connection herewith or therewith, including, without limitation, the fees and disbursements of counsel to each Holder and the Collateral Agent, (iii) to pay, indemnify, or reimburse each Holder and the Collateral Agent for, and hold each Holder and the Collateral Agent harmless from, any and all recording and filing fees and any and all liabilities with respect to, or resulting from any delay in paying, stamp, excise and other similar taxes, if any (and which shall not include any obligation to pay, indemnify or reimburse the Holder and the Collateral Agent for any income taxes that may become payable as a result of the receipt of principal or interest on the Note), which may be payable or determined to be payable in connection with the execution and delivery of, or consummation or administration of any of the transactions contemplated by, or any amendment, supplement or modification of, or any waiver or consent under or in respect of, this Agreement, the other Note Documents and any such other documents, and (iv) to pay, indemnify or reimburse each Holder, the Collateral Agent, their respective affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, trustees, employees, advisors, agents and controlling persons (each, an "Indemnitee") for, and hold each Indemnitee harmless from and against any and all other liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, costs, expenses or disbursements of any kind or nature whatsoever with respect to the execution, delivery, enforcement, performance and administration of this Agreement, the other Note Documents and any such other documents, including, without limitation, any of the foregoing relating to the use of proceeds of the Promissory Note, and the fees and disbursements and other charges of legal counsel in connection with claims, actions or proceedings by any Indemnitee against the Grantor hereunder (all the foregoing in this clause (iv), collectively, the "Indemnified Liabilities"); provided, that the Grantor shall have no obligation hereunder to any Indemnitee with respect to Indemnified Liabilities to the extent such Indemnified Liabilities are found by a final and nonappealable decision of a court of competent jurisdiction to have resulted from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of such Indemnitee. No Indemnitee shall be liable for any special, indirect, consequential or punitive damages in connection with the Note Documents.

(b) The agreements in this Section shall survive repayment of the Secured Obligations and all other amounts payable under the Note Documents.

6.5 <u>Successors and Assigns</u>. This Agreement shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the Grantor and shall inure to the benefit of the Collateral Agent and the Secured Parties and their successors and assigns; <u>provided</u> that the Grantor may not assign, transfer or delegate any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Collateral Agent.

NY2:\1832231\05\139RB05!.DOC\53356.0020

8

## PATENT REEL: 057227 FRAME: 0653

ŝ.

6.6 Set-Off. The Grantor hereby irrevocably authorizes the Collateral Agent and each Secured Party at any time and from time to time while an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, without notice to the Grantor, any such notice being expressly waived by the Grantor, to set-off and appropriate and apply any and all deposits (general or special, time or demand, provisional or final), in any currency, and any other credits, indebtedness or claims, in any currency, in each case whether direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, matured or unmatured, at any time held or owing by the Collateral Agent or such Secured Party to or for the credit or the account of the Grantor, or any part thereof in such amounts as the Collateral Agent or such Secured Party may elect, against and on account of the obligations and liabilities of the Grantor to the Collateral Agent or such Secured Party hereunder and claims of every nature and description of the Collateral Agent or such Secured Party against the Grantor, in any currency, whether arising hereunder, under this Agreement, any other Note Document or otherwise, as the Collateral Agent or such Secured Party may elect, whether or not the Collateral Agent or any Secured Party has made any demand for payment and although such obligations, liabilities and claims may be contingent or unmatured. The Collateral Agent and each Secured Party shall notify the Grantor promptly of any such set-off and the application made by the Collateral Agent or such Secured Party of the proceeds thereof, provided that the failure to give such notice shall not affect the validity of such set-off and application. The rights of the Collateral Agent and each Secured Party under this Section are in addition to other rights and remedies (including, without limitation, other rights of set-off) which the Collateral Agent or such Secured Party may have.

6.7 <u>Counterparts</u>. This Agreement may be executed by one or more of the parties to this Agreement on any number of separate counterparts (including by electronic mail or facsimile), and all of said counterparts taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument.

6.8 <u>Severability</u>. Any provision of this Agreement which is prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof, and any such prohibition or unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not invalidate or render unenforceable such provision in any other jurisdiction.

6.9 <u>Section Headings</u>. The Section headings used in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and are not to affect the construction hereof or be taken into consideration in the interpretation hereof.

6.10 <u>Integration</u>. This Agreement and the other Note Documents represent the agreement of the Grantor, the Collateral Agent and the Secured Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and thereof, and there are no promises, undertakings, representations or warranties by the Collateral Agent or any Secured Party relative to subject matter hereof and thereof not expressly set forth or referred to herein or in the other Note Documents.

6.11 <u>GOVERNING LAW</u>. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED AND INTERPRETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK.

# PATENT REEL: 057227 FRAME: 0654

6.12 <u>Submission To Jurisdiction; Waivers</u>. The Grantor hereby irrevocably and unconditionally:

(a) submits for itself and its property in any legal action or proceeding relating to this Agreement and the other Note Documents to which it is a party, or for recognition and enforcement of any judgment in respect thereof, to the non-exclusive general jurisdiction of the Courts of the State of New York, the courts of the United States of America for the Southern District of New York, and appellate courts from any thereof;

(b) consents that any such action or proceeding may be brought in such courts and waives any objection that it may now or hereafter have to the venue of any such action or proceeding in any such court or that such action or proceeding was brought in an inconvenient court and agrees not to plead or claim the same;

(c) agrees that service of process in any such action or proceeding may be effected by mailing a copy thereof by registered or certified mail (or any substantially similar form of mail), postage prepaid, to the Grantor at its address referred to in Section 6.2 or at such other address of which the Collateral Agent shall have been notified pursuant thereto;

(d) agrees that nothing herein shall affect the right to effect service of process in any other manner permitted by law or shall limit the right to sue in any other jurisdiction; and

(c) waives, to the maximum extent not prohibited by law, any right it may have to claim or recover in any legal action or proceeding referred to in this Section any special, exemplary, punitive or consequential damages.

6.13 Acknowledgements. (a) The Grantor hereby acknowledges that:

(b) it has been advised by counsel in the negotiation, execution and delivery of this Agreement and the other Note Documents to which it is a party;

(c) neither the Collateral Agent nor any Secured Party has any fiduciary relationship with or duty to the Grantor arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or any of the other Note Documents, and the relationship between the Grantor, on the one hand, and the Collateral Agent and Secured Parties, on the other hand, in connection herewith or therewith is solely that of debtor and creditor; and

(d) no joint venture is created hereby or by the other Note Documents or otherwise exists by virtue of the transactions contemplated hereby among the Secured Parties or among the Grantor and the Secured Parties.

6.14 <u>WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL</u>. THE GRANTOR HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL ACTION OR PROCEEDING RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY OTHER LOAN DOCUMENT AND FOR ANY COUNTERCLAIM THEREIN.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

## PATENT REEL: 057227 FRAME: 0655

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused this Agreement to be duly executed and delivered as of the date first above written.

BRN PHOENIX, INC.

By: Name: GALE BRANICLINO Title: 271

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECURITY AGREEMENT]

DTV SATELLITE BROADBAND, LLC, as Collateral Agent By: Name: Title: ITTUE 7 8

(SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECURITY AGREEMENT)

### SCHEDULE 1

### NOTICE ADDRESS

If to the Collateral Agent, to it at:

DTV Satellite Broadband, LLC 2230 East Imperial Highway El Segundo, CA 90245 Attention: General Counsel Facsimile: Electronic Mail:

with a copy to:

Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP 767 Fifth Avenue New York, NY 10153 Attention: Michael E. Lubowitz, Esq. Facsimile: (212) 310-8007 Electronic Mail: michael.lubowitz@weil.com

If to the Grantor, to it at:

BRN Phoenix, Inc. 2500 Augustine Drive Suite 200 Santa Clara, CA 95054 Attention: Facsimile: Electronic Mail:

NY2:\1832231\05\139RB05!.DOC\\53356.0020